1968

Lewis Bros. Stages, Inc. v. The Public Service Commission of Utah; Hal F. Bennett, Donald Hacking, and Donald T. Adams, Its Members and Link Trucking, Inc., Uintah Freightways, et al., v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Donald Hacking, Don T. Adams and Hal S. Bennett : Brief of Plaintiffs Milne Truck Lines, et al.

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This case involves an application to the Public Service Commission of Utah by the defendant Wycoff Company, Incorporated, for a certificate of convenience and necessity to operate as a common carrier by motor vehicle for the transportation of general commodities in express service between all points and places in the State of Utah over established highways.

DISPOSITION OF THE CASE

By its Order dated September 12, 1967, the Public Service Commission of Utah granted to Wycoff Company Incorporated a certificate of public convenience and necessity No. 1608 authorizing it to operate as a common carrier by motor vehicle for the transportation of general commodities in express service between all points and places in the State of Utah subject to certain restrictions and conditions.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON REVIEW

Plaintiffs seek to have the Order of the Public Service Commission dated September 12, 1967 reversed.

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

This brief is filed on behalf of Milne Truck Lines, Inc., Palmer Brothers Incorporated, Rio Grande Motorway, Inc., Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc., Denver-Salt Lake-Pacific Stages, Inc. and Continental Bus System, Inc., herein respectively referred to as Milne, Palmer, Rio Grande, Lake Shore, Continental and Denver-Salt Lake, and collectively referred to as these plaintiffs. Other briefs have been filed on behalf of plaintiffs Lewis Bros. Stages, Inc., Link Trucking, Inc. and Uintah Freightways. The defendant Wycoff Company Incorporated will be referred to herein as Wycoff and the de-

fendant Public Service Commission of Utah will be referred to as the Commission.

These plaintiffs have heretofore filed a memorandum with the Commission which contains a detailed outline of the facts and arguments relative to many of the elements and issues of this case upon which these plaintiffs rely to support their positions and said memorandum should be reviewed by this court in coming to its decision herein. (See R-220) In order to avoid unnecessary repetition, these plaintiffs will not restate all of such facts and arguments but rather incorporate said memorandum herein by reference. In addition, certain facts and arguments are contained in the briefs and memoranda of the other plaintiffs herein which these plaintiffs will not duplicate in this brief but which these plaintiffs rely upon to support their positions in this action.

Because this court has ordered that this case should be heard on review without the certification to the court of a transcript of the testimony of witnesses who appeared before the Commission, the facts herein stated are taken from that portion of the record which has been certified to this court and from the personal notes, records and memory of the counsels for these plaintiffs.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Since February, 1959, Wycoff has been operating a general commodities express service between all points and places in the State of Utah pursuant to its Certificate

of Public Convenience and Necessity No. 1162, Sub 2. Said certificate is restricted against service between Salt Lake City on the one hand and Ogden, Park City, Bingham Canyon, Wendover and Tooele, Utah, on the other hand, and against service to any and all intermediate points along said routes between such points. In addition, it is restricted against the transportation of shipments weighing in excess of 100 pounds and not more than 500 pounds of express shipments may be carried on any one of its schedules. Its authority is further restricted to the transportation of express pursuant to schedules which are tied to the movement of newspapers and mail.

The express authority of Wycoff under its Certificate No. 1162, Sub 2, was not a result of any showing of public convenience and necessity, but rather was a result of a stipulation entered into with Wycoff by various protesting carriers at the Commission hearing on Wycoff's application for statewide general commodities express authority. The territorial restrictions in that certificate came about when this court reversed the Commission's grant of statewide express authority to Wycoff in the case of *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. v. Bennett*, 8 Ut. 2d 293, 333 P.2d 1061 (1958), upon the grounds that there was no showing of public convenience and necessity for the service. The court did not however reverse the Commission with respect to territories other than those served by the particular plaintiffs who appealed to this court.

The application of Wycoff with which we are concerned in this case reads as follows:

“Applicant proposes to operate as a common carrier by motor vehicle for the transportation of property, namely, general commodities in express service, by performing an expedited service on established schedules which will be filed by the Commission, over regular routes with guaranteed delivery times, using simplified billing procedures and at premium tariff rates (excluding commodities in bulk and those requiring special equipment.) Between all points and places in Utah over established highways (R-1).

The application was referred for hearing to hearing examiner, Loren J. Broadbent. Hearings commenced at Salt Lake City, Utah on January 10, 1966, were held on various occasions at Salt Lake City, Logan, Vernal, Moab, Richfield and Cedar City, Utah and ended on September 9, 1966. None of the Commissioners of the Public Service Commission of Utah attended the hearings except sporadically at Salt Lake hearings.

Prior to commencement of the hearings, the protestant Ashworth Transfer, Inc., conditionally withdrew its protest upon Wycoff's amendment to the application restricting the proposed service to shipments weighing 1,000 pounds or less. (R-94)

At the commencement of the hearings, the protestants objected to the admission of the testimony of shipper witnesses until such time as the "premium rates" to be charged by the applicant as a part of its proposed service were placed into evidence. The objections were overruled and the hearing continued. Thereafter, on January 24, 1966, protestants Magna- Garfield Truck Lines, Redman Moving Storage Company, Barton Truck Lines, Uintah Freightways and Link Trucking, Inc. filed a written Motion to Dismiss or in the Alternative to Suspend Proceeding. The motion was joined in by the other protestants and was based upon the contention that the testimony was taken at the hearing at that time revealed that Wycoff did not intend to charge a premium rate as represented in its application and further that the testimony of shipper witnesses was rendered meaningless until such testimony could be related to the "premium rates" to be charged by Wycoff under its proposed operation (R-96). The motion was denied.

At the conclusion of the hearings, the Examiner ordered that parties be allowed to submit memoranda on questions of fact and law, which memoranda were submitted by all plaintiffs in this action and are contained in Volume II of the transcript of record herein. Thereafter, on May 10, 1967, the hearing examiner issued his Report and Recommended Order by which he recommended that Wycoff be authorized to operate as a common carrier by motor vehicle for the transportation of general commodities in shipments of 250 pounds or less

in weight in express service, between all points and places in the state of Utah, subject to the conditions that Wycoff file and publish its schedules, render service at least once daily to all points and communities in the State with a minimum of next-day service between all points on all regular highway routes within the State, and that Wycoff commence rendering pickup and delivery service at all points. (R-101)

Simultaneously with the filing of the Examiner's Report and Recommended Order, the Commission ordered the parties to file their Exceptions, if any, to the Report and Recommended Order within 30 days (R-100). Thereafter, all plaintiffs to this action and certain other protestants filed written motions requesting that a transcript of the proceedings held before the hearing examiner be made available prior to the filing of Exceptions so that a proper analysis of the evidence could be made by the parties and reviewed by the Commission. Said motions were denied by the Commission (R-133) and on September 12, 1967, the Commission, without the aid of a transcript of the testimony taken at the hearings, issued its Report and Order adopting almost verbatim the Findings of Fact and Conclusions contained in the Examiner's Report and Recommended Order and ordering that Wycoff be granted authority as follows:

"ORDER

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, That Wycoff Company, Incorporated, be and is hereby issued Certificate of Convenience

and Necessity No. 1608, to operate as a common carrier by motor vehicle for the transportation of general commodities in express service, as herein defined, between points and places in the State of Utah (except commodities in bulk and those requiring special equipment)).

Express service for purposes of this certificate is defined as expedited service, primarily on small shipments, on firmly established schedules, over regular routes, with guaranteed times of delivery, using simplified billing procedures, and at premium tariff rates.

A. Except as provided in Paragraphs B and C, the express service hereby authorized shall be statewide, and shall be subject to the following restrictions and requirements:

1. Applicant shall be limited to the transportation of shipments of not to exceed 250 pounds on a weight basis. 'Shipment' as herein used shall mean commodities moving on a single freight bill from one consignor to one consignee. Shipments shall not be separated to avoid this restriction.

2. Applicant shall file with the Commission its express schedules and any modifications thereof. In accordance with such filed and published schedules, applicant shall provide service at least once daily to all points and communities, and a minimum of next-day service between all such points on all established highways within the State of Utah.

3. As part of the express service hereby authorized, applicant shall render pickup and delivery service to all points including Salt Lake City, Ogden and Provo.

4. Applicant shall publish special express tariff rates to be approved by the Commission.

5. The Commission having continuing jurisdiction may review the operations hereunder periodically to ascertain whether or not increased weights or volumes have adversely affected Wycoff's ability to render express service.

B. Except as provided in Paragraph C hereof, the express authority of applicant between points in Salt Lake County is limited to shipments, as herein defined, of not more than 100 pounds." (R.155-156)

On the day following the issuance of the Commission's Report and Order, Wycoff published its tariff rates to be charged pursuant to the express authority it had received. Petitions were then filed on behalf of all plaintiffs in this action and certain other of the protestants requesting that such tariffs be suspended and subject to review by the Commission upon the grounds that they were not "premium rates" and therefore not in conformity with the terms of Wycoff's application or the Order of the Commission granting Wycoff the expanded express authority. Said Petitions were denied by the Commission (R-193). Petitions for rehearing and reconsideration relative to the grant of authority contained in the Commission's Order of September 12, 1967 were filed by all plaintiffs herein and various other protestants and they were denied by Order of the Commission dated October 18, 1967 (R-195).

After the appeal to this court was filed by the plaintiffs, the Commission made motion for and was granted three or four extensions of time within which to prepare and certify the transcript of record in this case, and upon the granting of the next-to-last of such extensions, Justice Crockett indicated that no further extensions of time would be granted. Thereupon, the plaintiffs to this action joined in a motion to this court which was heard pursuant to notice requesting that the court as a whole consider the granting of an extension of such time as may be necessary to prepare the transcript of oral evidence. These plaintiffs are informed that shortly after such hearing the Commission was ordered to appear ex-parte before this court where the matter was discussed further, and on April 4, 1968, this court issued its Order requiring that this case be heard upon review without a transcript of the oral evidence.

Something in excess of 200 shipper witnesses appeared to testify before the Commission relative to this Wycoff application. All of them were customers of Wycoff and were generally solicited to testify by means of a form letter prepared and circulated by Wycoff to its customers (Exhibits 8, 9, 10 and 11).

The shipper witnesses primarily represented businesses of two general types: (1) wholesale supply houses or other suppliers or service businesses located primarily in the Salt Lake City area and occasionally in

the other more densely populated areas of Ogden and Provo and (2) smaller retail stores or service businesses located in towns and communities in the more sparsely populated areas of the State. The need for service expressed by the shipper witnesses primarily involved the transportation of automotive or machinery parts, medicines and drugs, and other miscellaneous inventory items shipped from the Salt Lake City area suppliers in an outbound movement. The alleged need for express service was said by the witnesses to arise out of the breakdown of vehicles or machinery requiring a repair part not contained in the inventory of the business requested to perform the repairs, the emergency requirement for drugs or medicines which a drug store or hospital might run out of and the supplementing of inventories of various commodities sold by the smaller retail stores in the outlying areas. There was occasional reference to inbound shipments to Salt Lake City of items for repair and return.

The vast majority of shipments about which the shipper witnesses testified related to small packages or items weighing less than 100 pounds and most often less than 50 pounds and the request of such witnesses was for a transportation service which would allow the ordering of an item from the supplier on one day and receipt of that item at the witnesses' place of business at the beginning of working hours the following day.

Wycoff commenced its operations as a carrier of mail and newspapers and its present operation is still built around that service. Its schedules are established to accommodate its mail contracts and the distribution of newspapers, leaving Salt Lake City at about noon and midnight in most cases (Exhibit 5). Later it obtained authority to transport newspapers, magazines and periodicals, motion picture film and accessories, newsprint and newspaper machinery and ice cream and in 1957 this authority was amended to include books. In 1956 its authority was extended to include bull semen and cut flowers. Finally, in 1959 certificate No. 1162, Sub 2, was granted Wycoff authorizing its express service with weight and territorial restrictions as discussed above.

Wycoff only serves on the main highways in the state (Exhibit 5) and express packages destined to points in Utah off the main highways and in sparsely populated areas not near or on the particular routes over which Wycoff operates are transferred to either other certificated carriers such as the plaintiffs who regularly serve those areas or to uncertificated persons such as mailmen who complete the transportation to the point of destination.

The vehicles used by Wycoff in its operation are small van type trucks operated without assistance by one driver (Exhibit 25). Since most of the Wycoff schedules leave Salt Lake City in the late evening, the driver is required to make delivery in the middle of the night.

This is done by depositing the packages in locked drop boxes furnished to some of Wycoff's regular customers and located at or near the customer's place of business or the packages are placed inside the business of the customer in cases where Wycoff is furnished a key to the business in advance. Otherwise the packages are carried on through and delivered later that day on a return schedule.

Wycoff has not performed a pickup service on its intrastate express business in Salt Lake City, Ogden or Provo, even though it was authorized and expected to do so under its certificate number 1162 Sub 2. Its transportation rates have been substantially lower than the rates of the other carriers serving the same areas in the state of Utah, even though "premium rates" are understood to be an element of express service.

Lake Shore is a bus line operating between Salt Lake City and Ogden handling passengers, baggage and express. Unlike most other buslines it has pickup and delivery authority between the commercial areas and its terminals at Salt Lake City and Ogden (Ex. 242). Its buses travel several routes between Ogden and Salt Lake City (Ex. 243), and it shares the Ogden and Salt Lake City terminals with Greyhound Lines, Inc., its express being handled with the Greyhound express operation. It also has agencies established at Roy, Clearfield, Layton, Kaysville, Farmington and Bountiful (Ex. 244)

which are open from early morning to late at night and to or from which express shipments are transported. Lake Shore's buses are equipped with large express bays particularly suited to the handling of express packages. Lake Shore operates 11 schedules daily between Salt Lake City and Ogden starting at 6:10 a.m. with the last schedule departing Salt Lake City at 11:20 p.m. In addition, it has 14 sub runs traversing a part of the distance, the first of which leaves Salt Lake City at 5:48 a.m. and the last at 9:30 p.m. (Ex. 246). It operates on Sundays and holidays and supplements its published schedules as the need arises.

Although the agencies and terminals are the usual places for bus stops, special stops are provided upon request at any highway point and specific flag stops have been established to encourage traffic at such points. In the event of emergencies the buses will deviate from their regularly established routes to make direct delivery to off-route points. Express shipments tendered to Lake Shore but destined to or from points beyond the area of its authority are interlined with Greyhound at either the Salt Lake or Ogden terminals.

Wycoff does not hold express authority within the area serviced by Lake Shore as a result of this court's ruling in the case of *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. v. Bennett*, supra.

Continental operates buses in the transportation of passengers, baggage and express over routes which extend from Salt Lake City south via U.S. Highway 91 through Nephi, Beaver and St. George to the Arizona line. At Spanish Fork another route extends to Thistle and thence southeasterly via U.S. Highways 6 and 50 through Price and Crescent Junction to the Colorado state line and also south from Crescent Junction via U.S. Highway 160 to the Colorado line. From Thistle another route extends south via U.S. Highway 89 through Richfield and Kanab to the Arizona border (Ex. 85).

Continental operates 8 schedules per day each way between Salt Lake City and Thistle, 4 schedules between Thistle and Crescent Junction, three schedules between Crescent Junction and the Colorado border via U.S. Highway 6 and one schedule between Crescent Junction and the Colorado border via U.S. Highway 160 and between Thistle and the Utah-Arizona border via U.S. Highway 89. Its principal depot, located at Salt Lake City, is open 24 hours per day, seven days a week. It also operates a terminal at Provo, Utah and maintains agencies in every town of any consequence along its routes. Its buses are the new Silver Eagle model with an extra large express bay especially designed for the efficient handling of express traffic (Ex. 92).

Continental is a party to an agreement with American Bus Lines, Pacific Trailways and Denver-Salt Lake-Pacific Stages which operate over all main highways

within the State of Utah together under a system which is known as Continental Trailways Bus System. The companies operate as though they were a single unit. They share facilities and handle passengers, baggage and express by means of through schedules without the necessity of transferring lading from one bus to another. Thus, express shipments transported from a point upon the route of one participating company to a destination point upon the route of another participating company is shipped and handled as though only a single bus line is involved.

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