1968

Lewis Bros. Stages, Inc. v. The Public Service Commission of Utah; Hal F. Bennett, Donald Hacking, and Donald T. Adams, Its Members and Link Trucking, Inc., Uintah Freightways, et al., v. Public Service Commission of Utah, Donald Hacking, Don T. Adams and Hal S. Bennett : Brief of Defendants, Wycoff Company, Incorporated, The Public Service Commission of Utah and Its Members

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND ORDER ARE SUPPORTED BY VOLUMI-

NOUS, COMPETENT EVIDENCE OF PUBLIC NEED FOR THE EXPANDED EXPRESS SERVICE BY WYCOFF COMPANY.

The burden of proof on the applicant is well known when an extension of operating authority is sought. Wycoff has been serving the public in "express" operations in Utah since 1958 in addition to rendering a similar type service throughout *all* of Utah for the last 15 years plus on newspapers, motion picture film, flowers, books and other commodities requiring scheduled and expedited service.

Proof of this past experience, capabilities, equipment, insurance and finances was duly made. Most of the expanded proposed transportation will be in the same vehicles and on the same or similar schedules as were already operative. Simplified billing procedures were shown to the Commission and, by direct and cross examination, the proposals of service were thoroughly aired and evaluated.

Then the proof by the shipping public was adduced. For the convenience of the parties and the witnesses, the hearing was convened first at Salt Lake City and then adjourned to Logan, Vernal, Moab, Richfield and Cedar City. Thus a statewide representative group of concerned shippers appeared to support the application. Over 200 such testified as to their own business requirements for fast, direct, express service on dependable schedules. These businessmen, both large and small, were acquainted with the bus and truck services then

available to their communities and industries, knew of the problems which confronted them in emergencies, when special orders developed, when inventories were low and when customer needs dictated prompt procurement of commodities.

Most of the shipper witnesses already use the Wycoff express service, knew of the established dependability, early-morning delivery schedules or same-day delivery. These witnesses had problems which required more than 100 pound shipments or assured delivery not frustrated by the 500 pound per day per schedule truck limitation in the then Wycoff authority. This latter problem has made it necessary for Wycoff to suspend its pickup and delivery service in Salt Lake City, Ogden and Provo to avoid infringement of the restriction. In turn, a critical problem of preference developed as to whose express shipments would get on the truck and whose must be left behind when the 500 pound limit had been reached. Evidence on this was amply developed by applicant and the public.

Appended to this brief is an Appendix which is a digest of the Summary of the testimony of the supporting shipper witnesses. We recognize the voluminous nature of the Appendix, but such is inherent in a major case of this character. These witnesses represent some of the largest volume shippers in Utah, many key industries and a cross section of users of express services. Numerous shippers serve *all* of the State of Utah.

A number had shipments for which the express

service was needed in excess of 250 pounds, but the Commission in balancing the requirements of the public and the protection of the existing truck and bus lines placed a ceiling of 250 pounds generally and a 100 pound limit within Salt Lake County. Wycoff accepts those restrictions and will serve within those limits. When the Commission cut down the requested weight limits from 1000 pounds, we feel certain that it was exercising the prerogatives granted to it under the statutes.

So likewise, when the Commission authorized the per shipment increase from 100 pounds to 250 pounds generally and expanded the areas of service, it was exercising its duty and prerogatives under the statute. We urge the Court to review the summary of testimony of supporting shippers as set forth in the Appendix. This will show that there was nothing arbitrary or capricious in the Order of the Commission.

The extreme care with which the Commission reviewed the operations of other carriers, considered the past decisions of this Court, heard arguments and evaluated memoranda of counsel for all parties proves beyond doubt that the rights of all parties, and particularly the public, had been fully weighed. Public convenience and necessity do require the expanded express service, and this was duly proven by adequate and competent evidence.

There is a need for the Court to recognize the different character of this "express" service from that

traditionally offered by the established truck and bus lines. Wycoff publishes schedules giving departure and arrival times, a valuable aid to shippers and consignees alike. Such schedules are not customarily published by truck lines. A simplified form of billing has been created which is used on its express shipments to save any delays in handling. Wherever possible, direct pickup and delivery are made on the over-the-road truck. The equipment has specially designed bodies on trucks adapted for rapid highway movement and ease in loading and unloading.

Radio dispatch and special training of drivers aids in meeting emergency calls. The operations, though statewide in character, are generally over all of the major highways. Keys are had for business premises of many shippers and consignees (or convenient locked drop boxes are provided by Wycoff) where the time of delivery or pickup is after normal working hours. Frequent schedules make possible morning pickup in Salt Lake City and delivery the same day to most areas. Seven-day-per-week service is available to most areas. All types of commodities, within the weight limits, are accepted, as distinguished from the selective handling by bus express.

Through express shipments can be handled without interline or delay from all parts of the state. Most truck lines terminate at Salt Lake City and a day or two, or more, is lost in the interchange of freight between the different truck lines. Numerous shippers desire the

through, single-line express service across the Salt Lake City gateway without the existing truckline or bus line delays.

We feel certain that the Commission recognized the key part this expanded express service can render to the businesses and industries of Utah. As we are on a threshold of greater expansion all along the Wasatch front and these areas from Brigham City to Spanish Fork service the balance of the state, modernized transportation is needed. This modernization of service, with expedited deliveries, special training, scheduling, etc. is offered by Wycoff. The truck and bus companies will continue their regular service, except for urgent or emergency circumstances; but the growth in demand on shipments under 250 pounds, the substitution of express service for private transportation in this area, the encouragement of new businesses by better available service will be possible through Wycoff's expanded express operations.

POINT II

SUMMARY OF PERTINENT LAW

The general power and duty of the Commission is set forth in Section 54-6-4, U.C.A. 1953, and particularly in Section 54-6-5, which relates to the granting of Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity by the Commission. After the preliminary language making it unlawful to operate as a common motor carrier

in intrastate commerce without first having obtained from the Commission a certificate, and prescribing the notice relative to an application and the opportunity to present evidence, then the statute reads as follows:

“If the commission finds from the evidence that the public convenience and necessity require the proposed service or any part thereof it may issue the certificate as prayed for, or issue it for the partial exercise only of the privilege sought, and may attach to the exercise of the right granted by such certificate such terms and conditions as in its judgment the public convenience and necessity may require, otherwise such certificate shall be denied. Before granting a certificate to a common carrier, the commission shall take into consideration the financial ability of the applicant to properly perform the service sought under the certificate and also the character of the highway over which said common carrier proposes to operate and the effect thereon, and upon the traveling public using the same, and also the existing transportation facilities in the territory proposed to be served. If the commission finds that the applicant is financially unable to properly perform the service sought under the certificate, or that the highway over which he proposes to operate is already insufficiently burdened with traffic, or that the granting of the certificate applied for will be detrimental to the best interests of the people of the State of Utah, the commission shall not grant such certificate.”

A number of citations are set forth in the annotations to that statute, and there is no need to review these, as the burden of the language in these is that it

is the general responsibility, prerogative and duty of the commission to hear the evidence and determine whether or not a certificate should be granted. This is further fortified by the provisions of 54-7-16 relating to certiorari on review of orders of the commission. It is to be kept in mind that a petition for rehearing had been heard and considered by the commission prior to the time that an appeal has been taken to this court. The pertinent language of this section 54-7-16 is found in the center of page 88 of Vol. 6 of the Replacement in the Utah Code Annotated 1953, which reads:

“The review shall not be extended further than to determine whether the commission has regularly pursued its authority, including a determination of whether the order or decision under review violates any right of the petitioner under the Constitution of the United States or the State of Utah. Findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of fact shall be final and shall not be subject to review. Such questions and facts shall include ultimate facts and findings and conclusions of the commission on reasonableness and discrimination.”

We do not find any contentions by any of the plaintiffs in these proceedings that there has been a violation of any of the rights of said plaintiffs under the Constitution of the United States or of the State of Utah. Thus we must resolve whether or not the findings and conclusions of the commission are supported by competent evidence, as that element seems to have been interjected into the statute by reason of the inter-

pretations of this statute. The annotations of said section are directed to the court's attention without repeating the same at this time.

The Legislature of the State of Utah in delineating the area of review has made it very clear that the "findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of fact shall be final and shall not be subject to review. Such questions of fact shall include ultimate facts and findings and conclusions of the commission on reasonableness and discrimination." There are four Utah decisions which we feel may well aid this Court in a determination of the present case, and fully justify the affirmation of the decision of the commission. The first is a case which has been referred to by the plaintiffs, as it is the regional express application case of Wycoff Company, wherein this court set aside the grant of the commission as to the area between Salt Lake City and Ogden and the territory of Tooele and Park City, upon the ground that though the evidence was exceedingly voluminous, in that case the court did not find any substance for the findings and determination of the commission. The language is "these considerations of policy are, of course, primarily the responsibility of the commission. If the record contains support of any substance for its findings and determination, its order must stand . . . nevertheless, upon a survey of the record, we find no witness that made showing for the defendant: That he was aware of the services presently available; that he had attempted to make use of them and found the services wanting; nor did the witnesses

express actual dissatisfaction with the services presently offered. There being no such evidence, we see no basis for finding that public convenience and necessity require additional service. The finding to that effect was therefore capricious and arbitrary." (Supra p. 7).

That decision was in 1958, and it is to be recalled that that express service with a limitation of 100 pounds per shipment and a 500 pound per schedule was authorized and instituted in pursuance of the certificate issued by the commission at that time throughout the State of Utah, with the exception of the areas cancelled by the decision noted above. In 1963 this court reviewed the decision of the commission as to which one of four truck lines would have authority to take over the operations previously conducted by Fuller-Topence and its successor, Wasatch Fast Freight, Inc., between Salt Lake City and points north through Ogden, Logan and to the Utah-Idaho state line. There the commission concluded that Barton Truck Line was the appropriate carrier to be awarded the authority, and so determined, and the other carriers took an appeal. The decision is at 382 P 2d, 210, 14 Utah 2d, 261, entitled "*Carbon Motor Way, Inc. v. Barton Truck Lines, Inc. and Wycoff Company, Inc. v. Barton Truck Line, Inc.*" This language is found in this decision:

"The plaintiffs are not in an advantaged position to contend that public convenience and necessity do not require the service which they sought to render; and for which, incidentally, the record amply justifies the commission's find-

ings of need. As to whom the authority should be granted, it was the commission's prerogative to decide, so long as the carrier had the required qualifications. See Section 54-6-5 U.S.C. 1953."

In 1966 the case of *Joseph M. Lewis et al. v. Wycoff Company, Incorporated*, was decided by this court, 420 P 2d 264, 18 Utah 2d, 255. This involved the granting by the commission of authority to Wycoff Company to transport emergency shipments of contractor's supplies, equipment and parts weighing less than 1,000 pounds between all points in the State of Utah. It is noted that the positions and identity of the plaintiffs in that proceeding are very similar to the ones in this proceeding, it being the same carriers, and at page 265 the court characterized their position as follows:

"The criticisms which the protesting carriers make of this order are not unfamiliar in cases of this kind: that the evidence does not justify the finding of public convenience and necessity for the proposed service because existing services offered by them are adequate; that the granting of the new authority will hazard their continuance; and that the order is too vague and indefinite to constitute a proper grant of authority."

In affirming the order of the commission, this court then stated as follows, at page 266:

"Due to the responsibility imposed upon the Commission, and its presumed knowledge and expertise in this field, its findings and order are supported by certain well-recognized rules of review: They are endowed with a presumption of validity and correctness; and the burden is upon

the plaintiff to show that they are in error. We survey the evidence in the light most favorable to sustaining them; and we will not reverse unless there is no reasonable basis therein to support them so that it appears that the Commission's action was capricious and arbitrary. From what we have said above it should be apparent that we have found no such error in the exercise of the Commission's authority, nor any vagueness or ambiguity in the order which would justify its reversal."

The last case we would direct the court's attention to is the case of *Prichard Transfer, Inc. plaintiff, v. W. S. Hatch Co.*, No. 10761, filed May 20, 1968, 441 P 2d 135. We feel certain that the court will recall the circumstances here involved, wherein Prichard was engaged in the transportation of sulphuric acid from Mexican Hat to Moab, with the testimony of the shipper that its services were adequate and satisfactory. However, Hatch was engaged in the transportation of sulphur from the railhead at Moab down to Mexican Hat in interstate commerce, and requested authority to haul the sulphuric acid back to Moab so it could balance out its operations and give a better rate to the shipper. After first denying the application of Hatch, the commission reconsidered and granted to Hatch the authority to perform the identical service being rendered by Prichard from Mexican Hat to Moab in the transportation of sulphuric acid. After identifying that this was just a rate problem for the shipper, the court said: "Under ordinary circumstances rates are not a controlling subject of inquiry in an application for a

certificate of public convenience and necessity. However, the commission is charged with the duty of seeing that the public receives the most efficient and economical service possible." Then the two concluding paragraphs of the decision are as follows:

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